
 

Buckinghamshire Council 

Licensing Sub-Panel 1 
 
 
 

Agenda 
 

Date: Tuesday 28 April 2020 

Time: 10.00 am 

Venue:  

 
Membership: T Green, C Harriss (Chairman) and A Turner 
 
Agenda Item 
 

Page No 

1 Introductory remarks by the Chairman  
   
2 Apologies for absence  
   
3 Declarations of interest  
 To receive any disclosure of disclosable pecuniary interests by Members relating 

to any items on the agenda. If any Member is uncertain as to whether an interest 
should be disclosed, he or she is asked if possible to contact the District Solicitor 
prior to the meeting.  
 
Members are reminded that if they are declaring an interest, they should state 
the nature of that interest whether or not they are required to withdraw from 
the meeting. 
 

 

4 Fox Country Hotel, Ibstone Road, Ibstone, HP14 3XT 3 - 48 
 To consider an application under s.34 of the Licensing Act 2003 to amend the 

terms and conditions of the Licence in respect of the Fox Country Hotel, Ibstone 
Road, Ibstone, HP14 3XT (report and application attached). 
 

 

 
 
 
If you would like to attend a meeting, but need extra help to do so, for example because of a 
disability, please contact us as early as possible, so that we can try to put the right support in place. 
 
For further information please contact: Liz Hornby on 01494 421261 or at 
liz.hornby@buckinghamshire.gov.uk  
 

mailto:liz.hornby@buckinghamshire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing Panel Hearing 
28 April 2020 at 10:00 

Remote hearing via Microsoft Team 
 
Applicant(s): Fox Country Inn Ltd 
 
Premises: The Fox Country Hotel, Ibstone Road, Ibstone, HP14 3XT 
 
Ward affected: Hambleden Valley 
 
DETAILS OF APPLICATION: 
Premises History 
The premise is a public house and hotel that has its origins back into the 1700’s and which is 
situated in a rural location surrounded by woodland and countryside. The premises have traded 
for many years with an alcohol licence.  
 
The licence was successfully converted during the transitional period in 2005. At this time an 
application was made to extend the provision of regulated entertainment until 0100 hours 
Monday to Saturday and until 0030 hours Sunday. No application was made at this time to extend 
the sale by retail of alcohol which remains under grandfather rights from the 1964 Licensing Act 
being Monday to Saturday 1100 to 2300 hours, Sunday 1200 to 2230 hours. Given that no 
representations were received in relation to this application the licence was granted on 19th 
October 2005 as required by section 18(2) of the Licensing Act 2003. 
 
The Premises Licence transferred to the current owners in February 2011. 
 
In December 2011, an application was made to vary the terms of the Premises Licence to extend 
the times for licensable activities and to amend conditions. Following representations from the 
Control of Pollution Unit and local residents a hearing of the Licensing Sub-Committee determined 
that the application be granted with conditions. 
 
Following a complaint regarding noise from a local resident, a formal warning was issued to the 
licence holder on the 30th September 2013 regarding a breach of licence conditions, Appendix A. 
 
Further to the above warning, in November 2013 a minor variation application was received to 
extend the deadline by which the applicant was to remove gravel from the car park by 12 months. 
Given no objection form the Noise Pollution department (as the relevant responsible authority), 
the application was granted and the condition was amended. 
 
In October 2014 a minor variation application was received to extend the deadline by which the 
applicant was to remove gravel from the car park by 12 months. Given no objection form the 
Noise Pollution department (as the relevant responsible authority), the application was again 
granted and the condition was amended. 
 
In October 2015 a third application was made in respect to car park condition. A minor variation 
application sought to remove the condition to replace the gravel carpark with tarmac. The 
application was granted. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



On Saturday 30 September 2017 the police and licensing team undertook a joint enforcement 
operation across the district. This was a test purchasing operation in relation to child sexual 
exploitation and/or young persons at risk. The aim of the operation was to test premises by using 
a plain clothes police officer accompanied by a young person who attempted to obtain a room in a 
hotel and/or purchase alcohol.   
 
Alcohol was sold to the underage police cadet, aged 16, at the premises. Licensing Officers and 
police found the premises to be poorly managed with no apparent person in management control. 
The barman that undertook the sale of alcohol to the police cadet received a formal caution and 
subsequent formal warning having admitted to the offence. His statement was that he had only 
been at the premises for a few days, had received no formal training and had no prior experience 
of working behind a bar. 
 
After some time officers were able to speak by phone to the Designated Premises Supervisor 
(DPS), named at that time on the licence as the person responsible for authorising the retail sale of 
alcohol. The DPS stated that he had left the business in June 2017 and that the owners knew this. 
He was advised to formally resign the position of DPS in accordance with Section 41 of the 
Licensing Act 2003 if he wished to be removed from this position. This position was formally 
resigned the same day, Appendix B. 
 
Under section 136(1)(a) of the Licensing Act 2003 no sale by retail of alcohol can legally take place 
without a DPS. The premises were verbally advised of this on the 30th September 2017 and 
formally in writing on the 6th October 2017. 
 
On the 12th October 2017 the police submitted a valid application under Section 51 to review the 
premises licence, Appendix C.  
 
A formal warning was issued to the licence holder on the 18th October 2017 in respect of the 
offences witnessed on the 30th September, Appendix D.  
 
Following the sale of alcohol to an underage person, Thames Valley Police applied for a Review of 
the premises Licence In October 2017. Following a hearing of the Licensing Sub-Committee the 
conditions attached to the licence were amended, Appendix E. 
 
There have been applications to change the Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) since this date, 
although no further applications have been received to amend the terms of the premises licence 
until this current application. There have been no further complaints made to the Licensing Unit 
and consequently there are no further warning on file. 
 
Application to Vary a Premises Licence 
The applicant has applied under s.34 of the Licensing Act 2003 to amend the terms and conditions 
of the licence, Appendix F. The application was served on responsible authorities and the licence 
holder as required and it was advertised both at the premises itself and at the local press for the 
required 28 day consultation period. 
 
In summary the application is for the extension of times for licensable activities as follows: 
 
Retail sale of alcohol:   Mondays – Thursday   09:00 - 01:00  
    Friday – Sunday   09:00 - 02:00 

Page 4



 
Performance of dance & performance of live music:  
    Monday – Thursday   23:00 - 01:00 
    Friday – Sunday   23:00 - 02:00 
 
The hour’s premises open to the public:  
    Monday – Thursday  07:00 - 01:00 
    Friday – Sunday  07:00 - 02:00 
 
NOTE: Live and recorded music in not a licensable activity between the hours of 0800 – 2300 and 
therefore falls outside the jurisdiction of The Licensing Act 2003. 
 
A copy of the current licence is attached, Appendix G.  
 
RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS 
Responsible authorities: 
Police: No objection to the application received 
Fire Officer:  No representations received 
Health and Safety: No representations received 
Control of Pollution: No objection to the application received 
Child Protection: No representations received 
Health Trust: No representations received 
Planning: No representations received 
Trading Standards: No representations received 
Interested Parties: Seven representations from local residents with respect to noise nuisance, 

Appendix H.  
 
RELEVANT PARTS OF THE COUNCIL’S LICENSING POLICY AND THE NATIONAL GUIDANCE ISSUED 
UNDER S.182 OF THE ACT 
 
In relation to prevention of public nuisance the guidance states (p.13) 
 
2.15  The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through 

representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to 
prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club premises 
certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this licensing 
objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect of the 
licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working (including those 
carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be disproportionate and 
unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light pollution, noxious smells 
and litter.  

 
2.16  Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however not 

narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may 
include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and 
environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises. 
Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust, 
odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.  

 

Page 5



2.17  Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control the 
levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple measure such 
as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular time, or persons are 
not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time. More sophisticated 
measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker mounts to mitigate 
sound escape from the premises may be appropriate. However, conditions in relation to 
live or recorded music may not be enforceable in circumstances where the entertainment 
activity itself is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any conditions appropriate to promote the 
prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type, nature and characteristics of 
the specific premises and its licensable activities. Licensing authorities should avoid 
inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter events that are valuable to 
the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are expensive to purchase 
and install and are likely to be a considerable burden for smaller venues. 

 
2.18  As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in certain 

circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those living in the area 
of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing authorities and 
responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their powers are engaged, 
licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other legislation may not adequately 
cover concerns raised in relevant representations and additional conditions may be 
appropriate.  

  
2.19  Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions should 

normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive period for 
people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the early morning when 
residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or are sleeping. This is why 
there is still a need for a licence for performances of live music between 11 pm and 8 am. In 
certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise emanating from the premises may also be 
appropriate to address any disturbance anticipated as customers enter and leave. 

 
2.21  Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the personal 

responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-social behaviour is 
accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly reasonable for a licensing 
authority to impose a condition, following relevant representations, that requires the licence 
holder or club to place signs at the exits from the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until 
they leave the area, or that, if they wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the 
premises instead of outside, and to respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful 
night.  

 
In relation to the prevention of public nuisance the policy states (p.10) 
 
3.16 The Council wishes to protect the amenity of residents and businesses in the immediate 

area surrounding the licensed premises.  Applications should demonstrate that public 
nuisance will not increase as a result of the application being granted. 

 
3.17 The Authority will particularly take into account the following: 

  The measures proposed to prevent noise and vibration escaping from the premises. 
Such measures may include installation of sound insulation and sound limitation 
devices; 

Page 6



  Measures proposed to prevent public nuisance from use of outside areas, including 
smoking areas and outdoor events; 

  The measures proposed to prevent disturbance by customers arriving at or leaving 
the premises, in particular after 11pm, for example appropriate signage at exits and 
in car parks, parking provision, the provision of door supervisors, use of “quiet last 
half hour” at dance venues and provision and availability of safe transport home; 

  The measures proposed to prevent light pollution from external lighting, including 
security lighting; 

  The measures proposed for refuse storage or disposal and management of any 
additional litter; 

  Representations by Control of Pollution, Thames Valley Police and Environmental 
Health; 

  Representations by local residents in the vicinity of the premises; 

  Representations by Parish and Town Councils. 
 

OBSERVATIONS 
 
The Panel is obliged to determine this application with a view to promoting the licensing 
objectives which are: 
 

 The prevention of crime and disorder 

 Public safety 

 The prevention of public nuisance 

 The protection of children from harm 
 
In making its decision, the Panel is also obliged to have regard to national guidance and the 
Council’s Licensing Policy. Should the Panel depart from either it must specify its reasons for doing 
so. The Panel must also take into consideration all of the representations made and the evidence 
submitted, both written and orally at the hearing. 
 
In promoting the licensing objectives the Panel may take any of the following decisions in relation 
to the application: 
 

 Grant the application as asked 

 Grant the application, subject to any appropriate conditions 

 Reject all or part of the application 
 
The Panel should also consider its responsibilities under the Human Rights Act when considering 
the fair balance between the interests of the applicant and the rights of local residents.   
 
Any decision taken must be appropriate and proportionate to the objective being pursued. In 
particular the following should be taken onto consideration: 
Article 6 - the right to a fair hearing 
Article 8 - respect for private and family life 
Article 1, First Protocol - peaceful enjoyment of possessions (which can include the possession of a 
licence) 
 
The plan of the premises and current licence is attached Appendix J. 

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48


	Agenda
	4 Fox Country Hotel, Ibstone Road, Ibstone, HP14 3XT
	200428 Fox Inn report
	200428 Fox Inn Appx A
	200428 Fox Inn Appx B
	200428 Fox Inn Appx C
	200428 Fox Inn Appx D
	200428 Fox Inn Appx E
	200428 Fox Inn Appx F
	200428 Fox Inn Appx G




